
ZONING REPORT 
 
Case No.: 0113-01  
HTE No. 12-10000042 
 
Planning Commission Hearing Date: January 16, 2013 
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n Applicant/Owner: Brooke Tract, L.P. 

Legal Description/Location: 39.99 acres out of Lots 16, 17, 18, 19, 
28, 29, and 30, Section 26, Flour Bluff and Encinal Farm and Garden 
Tracts, located on the southeast corner of Rodd Field Road and 
Brooke Road. 
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 From: “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District 
To:  “RM-1” Multifamily 1 District 
Area: 39.99 acres 
Purpose of Request: To allow construction of an apartment complex.  
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 Existing Zoning 
District Existing Land Use Future Land Use 

Site “RS-6” Single-Family 6 Vacant Low Density 
Residential 

North “RS-6” Single-Family 6 Drainage Corridor Drainage Corridor 

South 
“RS-6” Single-Family 6 

& “RS-4.5” Single-
Family 4.5 

Vacant &  
Public Semi-Public 

Low Density 
Residential 

East “RS-6” Single-Family 6 Vacant Low Density 
Residential 

West “FR” Farm Rural & 
 “RS-6” Single-Family 6 Vacant Low Density 

Residential 
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 Area Development Plan: The subject property is located in the Southside 
Area Development Plan (ADP) and is planned for low density residential uses. 
The proposed change of zoning to the “RM-1” Multifamily 1 District is not 
consistent with the adopted Future Land Use Plan. 
Map No.: 041031 and 042031 
Zoning Violations:  None  
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n Transportation and Circulation: The subject property has approximately 
790 feet of frontage along Rodd Field Road, which is an “A3” Primary-Arterial 
Divided street. The property potentially has access to County Road 7B (future 
Fred’s Folly Drive), which is a proposed “C1” Minor Residential Collector 
street. The property also has potential indirect access to Brooke Road, which 
is a “C1” Minor Residential Collector street, via a drainage crossing on County 
Road 7B (future Fred’s Folly Drive).  
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Street 
Urban 

Transportation 
Plan Type 

Proposed 
Section 

Existing 
Section  

Traffic 
Volume 
(2011) 

Rodd Field 
Rd. 

“A3” Primary-
Arterial Divided 

130’ ROW 
79’ paved 

130’ ROW 
24’ paved 

9,901 
(2010) 

Brooke Rd. 
“C1” Minor 
Residential 
Collector 

60’ ROW 
40’ paved 

50’ ROW 
32’ paved 

Not 
Available 

Fred’s 
Folly Dr. 
(CR 7B) 

 “C1” Minor 
Residential 
Collector 

60’ ROW 
40’ paved 

30’ ROW  
12’ paved 

Not 
Available 

 
Staff Summary: 
 
Requested Zoning: The applicant is requesting a change of zoning from the “RS-6” 
Single-Family 6 District to the “RM-1” Multifamily 1 District to allow construction of an 
apartment complex with a maximum potential density of 22 dwelling units per acre. 
 
Applicant’s Development Plan: The proposed apartment complex will be constructed 
in two phases. The apartment complex will consist of 14 buildings in Phase 1 and 10 
buildings in Phase 2. Phase 1 will consist of 280 dwelling units, while Phase 2 will 
consist of 220 dwelling units. The developer currently proposes a density of 
approximately 12.5 dwelling units per acre, which will classify the use as medium 
density residential (8-22 dwelling units per acre). The apartment buildings will wrap 
around an existing 33-acre private lake. The apartments will have access to Rodd Field 
Road. A 125-foot drainage ditch located north of the subject property will buffer the 
subject property from the single-family neighborhood on the north side of Brooke Road. 
There will also be a portion of land zoned “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District between the 
subject property and the single-family neighborhood on the east side of County Road 
7B (future Fred’s Folly Drive). 
 
Existing Land Uses & Zoning: South of the subject property is vacant land zoned “RS-
4.5” Single-Family 4.5 District. North of the subject property is a drainage corridor, a 
single-family neighborhood, and a church zoned “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District. East of 
the subject property is vacant land zoned “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District. West of the 
subject property across Rodd Field Road is vacant land zoned “FR” Farm Rural District. 
Southwest of the subject property is the future site of Bay Area Fellowship church, 
which is zoned “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District. 
 
AICUZ:  The subject property is not located in one of the Navy’s Air Installation 
Compatibility Use Zones (AICUZ). 
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Comprehensive Plan & Area Development Plan (ADP) Consistency: The proposed 
change of zoning is in the Southside Area Development Plan and is not consistent with 
the adopted Future Land Use Plan, which slates the property for a low density 
residential use. The rezoning, however, would be appropriate for this location and it is 
consistent with elements of the Comprehensive Plan, such as: 

1.) Medium-density residential development should be located in areas with 
convenient arterial access (Comprehensive Plan, Residential Policy Statement 
F). 

2.) Traffic hazards should be lessened by discouraging through traffic within 
residential areas (Comprehensive Plan, Residential Policy Statement J). 

 
Department Comments: 
• The subject property is suitable for medium-density residential uses. 
• There have been several attempts to develop this tract of land with single-family 

uses and all have failed for various reasons. Although inconsistent with the adopted 
Future Land Use Plan, developing apartments will maintain the residential nature of 
the property in this area. 

• The proposed apartment complex will have direct access to Rodd Field Road. With 
direct access to an arterial-type road, traffic will be discouraged through the 
surrounding residential areas. 

• This rezoning is compatible with the present zoning and conforming uses of nearby 
properties, and does not have a negative impact on the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
Planning Commission and Staff Recommendation (January 16, 2013): 
Approval of the change of zoning from the “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District to the “RM-1” 
Multifamily 1 District. 
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Number of Notices Mailed –  26 within 200’ notification area;  4 outside 
notification area  
 
As of January 17, 2013: 
In Favor           – 2 (inside notification area); 0 (outside notification area) 
In Opposition           – 5 (inside notification area); 0 (outside notification area) 
 
For 0.45% in opposition. 

 
Attachments: 1. Location Map (Existing Zoning & Notice Area) 
 2. Preliminary Development Plan 
 3. Public Comments (Letter and Petition) 
























